
 
Town of Swanzey Planning Board  Draft Minutes 
December 12, 2013 
Page 1 of 5 
 

 

 
 

Town of Swanzey, New Hampshire 
Swanzey Planning Board 

Meeting Minutes – December 12, 2013 
 

Note:  Draft Minutes are subject to review, correction and approval by the Board. Review and approval of Minutes 
generally takes place at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board. 

 

The regular meeting of the Swanzey Planning Board was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Chair Glenn 
Page.  Members present:  Scott Self, June Fuerderer, Joe Smith, Alternate Don Skiba, and Selectmen’s 
Representative Ken Colby. The roll call and agenda for the meeting was read by Chair Page. Page seated 
Skiba for Goller. 
 

Absent:  Jeff Goller, Gus Lerandeau, Alternate Jane Johnson 
 
Others Present:  Director of Planning and Community Development Sara Carbonneau, Resident Rose & 
Walter Kowaliw, Applicant Michelle Slocum, Applicant Brian Stone, Dick Fraser from One Source 
Properties & Permitting, Gary Patch from Cold River Materials and Resident Michael McGrath. 
 
Minutes:  Minutes from November 14, 2013 were reviewed. The Board requested that the discussion 
regarding Zaremba's application reflect that the cost of the sidewalk would be at Zaremba's expense  
and add statement in the discussion on Nissan of Keene's application from Michael McGrath stating that  
his home has not had a problem in the house or leach field in the more than 28 years he has lived there. 
Motion was made by Skiba to accept the minutes with changes as stated above. The motion was 
seconded by Self.  All were in favor except Smith who abstained. Motion passed. 
 
Regional Impact: Board members considered whether any items on the agenda could be construed as 
having the potential for regional impact. Motion made by Fuerderer that no items on the agenda could 
be reasonably construed as having the potential for regional impact. Second by Smith, no further 
discussion, and all were in favor of the motion. Motion passed. 
 
A.  PUBLIC HEARINGS - 
 

1. Home Occupation Application 
Michelle & Michael Slocum wish to utilize the property situated at 144 Goodell Avenue for a 
home business consisting of the retail sales of handmade crafts.  The property is situated in the 
Residence District, shown at Tax Map 25, Lot 12.  Michelle Slocum appeared before the Board.  
Abutting property owners Walter & Rose Kowali were present.  Public hearing opened. 
 
Michelle Slocum addressed the Planning Board.  She stated that her driveway is 284 feet and 
explained her working space is in a barn on the property.  She said the shop space and space for 
retail is combined 312 square feet.  Half of the square footage will be used for retail.  Abutter 
Rose Kowaliw was present and asked about the kind of business Slocum was planning to pursue 



 
Town of Swanzey Planning Board  Draft Minutes 
December 12, 2013 
Page 2 of 5 
 

and Slocum said that it would be hand crafts. Kowaliw asked about hours of operation.  Slocum 
replied that she would be open for holiday weekends and Thursday through Sunday sales. 
Carbonneau asked for clarification on the space to be utilized.  Slocum said the retail space will 
be about ½ of total area of 312 square feet.  Carbonneau pointed out the applicant is limited to 
a maximum of 300 square feet total.  The abutters asked about a sign outside.  Slocum said she 
would be utilizing a 2’ by 2’ sign which is the maximum size allowed by the ordinance. It was 
noted that the application said that sales would occur between 12 noon to 7 p.m. on holiday 
weeks and 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Saturday and Sunday non-holiday weeks and Slocum would be 
expected to abide by those hours. Slocum agreed.  Public hearing closed. 
 

Motion by Colby to approve the home occupation business of Michael and Michelle 
Slocum consisting of the retail sales of handmade crafts on property situated at 144 
Goodell Avenue in the Residence District, shown at Tax Map 25, Lot 12. The motion was 
seconded by Fuerderer, and all were in favor. Motion passed. 

 
2. Home Occupation Application 

Brian Stone wises to utilize the property situated at 39 Goodell Avenue for a home business, 
consisting of septic pumping, with one truck being housed at the location and a home office.  
The property is situated in the Residence District, shown at Tax Map 30, Lot 5-4.  Brian Stone 
appeared before the Board.  No abutters were present.  Public hearing opened. 
 
Mr. Stone addressed the Board about his proposed septic hauling business on Goodell Avenue. 
He said only a tanker will be in his garage. He noted that his office space is part of a sunroom 
and is about 30 feet.  Stone said that he will use a total of 221 square feet for both the truck 
area and the office area.  Page asked if there were abutters present. There were none but 
Kowaliw who also lives on Goodell Avenue asked about the number of trucks that would be 
expected to be involved in the business and Stone said only one truck, which would be housed 
in his garage.  Public hearing closed. 
 

Skiba made a motion to approve the home occupation by Brian Stone of a home 
business, consisting of septic pumping, with one truck being housed at the location and 
a home office on property situated at 39 Goodell Avenue shown at Tax Map 30, Lot 5-4.   
The motion was seconded by Self, and all were in favor. Motion passed. 

 
Colby asked about the item announcing the new business in the business section of the Keene 
Sentinel newspaper prior to receiving approval of his application.  Stone said the Sentinel 
printed the item without his permission. Carbonneau said that the Sentinel newspaper may 
have obtained the information from the legal notice and/or agenda and jumped the gun 
announcing it. 

 
B.  OTHER APPLICATIONS - 
 

1. Attached Sign Permit Application 
C&S Signs wishes to install an attached sign on property situated at 11 West Swanzey Road, 
shown at Tax Map 38, Lot 1.  The property is owned by Demoulas Super Markets, Inc.  



 
Town of Swanzey Planning Board  Draft Minutes 
December 12, 2013 
Page 3 of 5 
 

Carbonneau explained that the southern end of the Market Basket building is going to become a 
Sears store and a sign is requested for the front of the building. She noted that Demoulas has 
obtained approval for a retail tenant in the past.  The section of the building that will be utilized 
for the Sears store is 160 feet long.  Per the application the front sign will be 54” x 17’ 2 ¼” 
which equals 77.36 square feet and the rear sign will be 1’6” X 10’ 1 ½” which equals 15.19 
square feet. 
 

Smith made the motion to approve the sign application as submitted by C&S Signs for a 
sign on property situated at 11 West Swanzey Road shown at Tax Map 38, Lot 1, second 
by Colby, and all were in favor. Motion passed. 

 
2. Renewal of Excavation Permit  

for Cold River Materials "Jennings’s Pit," shown at Tax Map 13, Lot 11 and Tax Map 4, Lot 12.  
Current Excavation Permit expired on December 3, 2013.  Current Alteration of Terrain Permit 
runs through December 2015.  Proposed Excavation Permit to run through January 31, 2016. 
 
Dick Fraser  from One Source Properties & Permitting, LLC  and Gary Patch from Cold River 
Materials were present representing the Lane Construction Corp (Cold River Materials) for 
renewal of RSA 155-E Permit at the Jennings Excavation Site (Map 13/Lot 11 & Map 4/Lot 12) off 
of Flat Roof Mill Road.  Fraser spoke about the gravel pit, most of which he said has been 
reclaimed.  The site is 8.5 acres in size.  The plan sheet was reviewed.   He showed vegetation in 
a photo of the site. Seeding is done by hydro-seeder.  He noted the area at the most eastern 
part needs to be treated with topsoil and seeded.  He showed a photograph with perspective 
looking west and some reclamation work is needed there he said.  Page asked about how many 
cubic yards of material are left in the pit.  Frasier responded that granular material has about 
expired from there.  He said the company could mine up to 15 feet up to the PSNH pole. The 
state permit will run out in December 2015, and it is anticipated (but not definite) that they then 
will close the pit and perform final reclamation. Self asked about renewing the continuation 
permit to 2016 (for three years), as the bond extension goes only to May 12, 2014.  Carbonneau 
said that the excavation permit says that the applicant has posted a $30,000 bond.  Carbonneau 
also stated that if the bond is not renewed, Cold River Materials will be in violation of its 
Excavation Permit.  She noted that, historically, they have been good about getting their 
renewal certificates. She noted a typo needs to be corrected in the excavation permit and that 
will be corrected. 
 

Smith made a motion to renew the excavation permit of Cold River Materials at the 
Jennings Pit on property shown at Tax Map 13, Lot 11 and Tax Map 4, Lot 12, with 
second by Fuerderer, and all were in favor. Motion passed. 

 
3. Food Service Wagon 

Michelle Sargent proposes to operate a mobile food service wagon at property located 132 
Monadnock Highway.  The property is situated in the Business District and shown at Tax Map 
18, Lot 68.  The property is owned by Patrick Eufemia.   
 



 
Town of Swanzey Planning Board  Draft Minutes 
December 12, 2013 
Page 4 of 5 
 

No one was here to present.  Carbonneau said that Sargent provided a packet for the Board to 
review her application. Carbonneau noted that the request is to operate at the Salvation Army 
building. Carbonneau also noted that the Salvation Army has had food service wagons in there 
in the past, so this isn’t the first person to conduct this kind of activity in the area.  Page asked 
about a permit from the state health officer.  Carbonneau responded that a food service permit 
will be required from the State.  In addition, the food service truck will need to be reviewed and 
approved by the Fire Department.  Self noted that the hours in the application were listed as 
Monday through Saturday from 6:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. and “subject to change”.  Carbonneau 
said the hours of operation may be less than in her application but that the motion could specify 
the hours of operation. 
 

Self made a motion to approve the application of Michelle Sargent to operate a mobile 
food service wagon at property located 132 Monadnock Highway situated in the 
Business District, shown at Tax Map 18, Lot 68 and owned by Patrick Eufemia with hours 
of operation between 6:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. Monday through Saturday. The motion 
was seconded by Smith, and all were in favor. Motion passed. 

 
C.  DISCUSSIONS/OTHER BUSINESS - 
 

1. Correspondence from Michael McGrath dated November 19, 2013 regarding November 14, 
2013 minutes.  The requested statement is to be added to the minutes of November 14, 2013. 

 
2. Update by Chair Glenn Page regarding drainage at Nissan of Keene.  Ditches were supposed to 

be cleaned out by the end of the year.  Fencing hasn’t been put up. A discussion was held 
regarding the status of the drainage at Nissan of Keene and the fact that Nissan of Keene had 
agreed at a prior Planning Board meeting to clean out a drainage ditch and erect a fence 
between its property and the property of Michael McGrath, which has not been done. 
 

Motion by Skiba that Nissan needs to put up a fence at the southern end of the property adjacent to 
the property owned by Michael McGrath by the end of year 2013 and Nissan to be informed by 
letter of the decision by the Planning Board, second by Self.  

 
Discussion continued regarding the drainage of rain water in the parking lot of the Nissan property. 
Michael McGrath, an abutter, was present to discuss the Nissan parking lot and how it impacts his 
property.  McGrath said some of the water is not making it into the retention pond and instead coming 
onto his property near his leach field. Discussion about how the water flows off the parking lots and 
coming off the hill in back.  
 
Page said that if water is not draining properly as built compared to as planned in the approved site 
plan, then the plan can be revoked. Skiba suggested that this be added to the letter to be sent to Nissan 
of Keene. McGrath said that Nissan is using the area near his home as a dumping area for snow. Page 
said he would take a look at the property once again on December 13, 2013.  
 



 
Town of Swanzey Planning Board  Draft Minutes 
December 12, 2013 
Page 5 of 5 
 

Carbonneau noted that Code Enforcement Officer Chet Greenwood is working Friday morning 
December 13, 2013, and Sara suggested that he can write up notices if there is a violation. Page will 
meet with Greenwood at 9 a.m. on Friday, December 13, 2013. 
 

Page called the motion on the table and all were in favor.  Motion passed. 
 

3. Other business as may be required. 
 

Motion to adjourn was made by Fuerderer, seconded by Skiba, with all in favor. Motion passed.  
Adjournment at 6:53p.m. 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Beverly Bernard, Recording Secretary 
 
 


